
E911 Service Board Meeting 
September 11, 2014 
10:00 AM - CESC 

 
 

Members Present: Jeffrey Stern Danny Garrison 
 David Von Moll Jim Junkins 
 Chief D.A. Middleton –Vice Chairman 

David Ogburn 
Bob Layman 
Pokey Harris via Audio Bridge 

 Diane Harding Lt. Col. Robert Kemmler 
 Kathleen Seay Anthony McDowell 
 J.D. Diggs Athena Plummer 
   
   
   
Members Absent: Samuel Nixon, Jr.  
   
   
   
Remote Abingdon   
 Culpeper  
   
   
Staff Present: Dorothy Spears-Dean Lewis Cassada 
 Steve Marzolf Joshua Heslinga 
 Terry Mayo Buster Brown 
 Brian Crumpler Anthony Fung 
   
   
   

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting of the E911 Services Board was called to order at 10:00 AM by                                          
Chairman Stern.  Chairman Stern asked that all present at the meeting to take a 
minute and observe a moment of silence for the victims of September 11.  Dr. 
Dorothy Spears-Dean did a roll call of the Regional Facilities calling remotely.  
All Regional Facilities were on-board and accounted.                      
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM JULY 10, 2014 
 
Chairman Stern asked for changes/additions to the July 10, 2014 Board Minutes.       
Lt. Col. Robert Kemmler made a motion to approve the Minutes, and Mr. Danny 
Garrison 2nd the motion for approval.  The motion was approved; 10-0-0. (Mr. 
David Von Moll, Mr. Robert Layman, and Chief Doug Middleton had not 
arrived at CESC.  Ms. Pokey Harris had not signed in, via Conference 
Bridge, at Abingdon). 



 
 
 

3. EXECUTIVE BRIEFING ON NG9-1-1 FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 
Dr. Spears-Dean addressed the Board and said that Mr. John Chiaramonte, and 
Mr. Ethan Brinkman-Hansen from MCP will address the Board and give them a 
brief overview of the NG9-1-1 Feasibility Study.  They also will be answering 
questions from the Board.  Mr. Chiaramonte addressed the Board and talked about 
the project drivers; project goal/objectives, statement of requirements; the high 
level of the schedule; the accomplishments to date; the PSAP Data Collection; 
and the state level ESInet Development efforts.  Mr. Chiaramonte said that the 
goal is to provide multiple solutions for the design of a single statewide IP-based 
9-1-1 network.  Chairman Stern called for questions from the Board.  Mr. Robert 
Layman asked if there is one state-wide CPE for the Commonwealth.  Mr. 
Chiaramonte said no. He also said that with an ESInet you have the ability to 
bring smaller counties together using a single CPE.  Chief Doug Middleton asked 
about the project time-line?  Mr. Chiaramonte said that the draft will be done by 
the end of the year.  Chairman Stern asked Mr. Chiaramonte what is the largest 
implementation he has seen? Mr. Chiaramonte said that it is Indiana and 
Tennessee.  Chairman Stern asked about implementation plans for the 
Commonwealth?  Mr. Chiaramonte said that it would probably be implemented 
within the next 5-10 years.  Chairman Stern thanked Mr. Chiaramonte for his 
presentation. Dr. Spears-Dean then addressed the Board and gave a brief 
overview of how staff and MCP are going to go implement this study.  The 
participation of all Virginia PSAPs is critical to the success of the study and the 
most critical PSAP data elements will be collected through a survey.  Dr. Spears-
Dean then referred the Board Members to the questions being considered which is 
provided in the Board packets.  Ms. Spears-Dean said that staff is asking the 
Board to consider the survey a programmatic requirement for participation in the 
PSAP Grant Program.   Chairman Stern asked for a discussion from the Board 
members.  Mr. David Von Moll asked if tying it to the “Grant Program” would be 
enough, or should it include the 60% monthly funding?  Mr. Joshua Heslinga said 
he would look into the statute and advise the Board.  Mr. Heslinga said that he 
does not see anything in the statute that would prohibit the Board from making 
participation in the PSAP Grant Program contingent upon the completion of the 
survey.  Chairman Stern then called for a vote on the motion already on the floor, 
that the Board considers the survey a programmatic requirement for participation 
in the PSAP Grant Program.  Sheriff J. D. Diggs made the motion, Mr. Robert 
Layman 2nd the motion.  The motion was approved; 14-0-0.  After the vote, Mr. 
Jim Junkins commented that some of the questions may be confusing to the 
PSAPs and recommended staff continue to refine the questions to make sure that 
everyone understands them.   
 
 



4. FY2014 ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 
Dr. Spears-Dean addressed the Board and said that there is a copy of the FY2014 
Annual Report in the Board’s packet, and it is the shortest report that staff has 
produced.  Dr. Spears-Dean went over the highlights and reporting requirements 
for the report.  Dr. Spears-Dean also informed the Board that at the January Board 
meeting staff will bring some information on the “Statewide Comprehensive Plan 
for 911”.  Dr. Spears-Dean said that staff is seeking Board action to approve the 
FY2014 Annual Report, so it can be distributed as required by code.  Chairman 
Stern called for questions from the Board.  Ms. Kathy Seay asked about collection 
of data on the CPE.  Ms. Seay wanted to make sure that the Board is not asking 
for the same information twice.  Dr. Spears-Dean said the data collection involves 
two different collection points in an effort to validate the data.  Dr. Spears-Dean 
said that concern over funding transfers to the Compensation Board and the State 
Police continue to be mentioned in the Report. Dr. Spears-Dean said that staff will 
address adequate funding going forward instead of going backward.  Mr. Robert 
Layman asked about funding for NG9-1-1.  Dr. Spears-Dean said that no funding 
source has been identified right now, but that the Feasibility Study would provide 
insight.  Chairman Stern asked Mr. Joshua Heslinga to look into the language of 
the Annual Report to see if it adequately addresses the transfers. Mr. Heslinga 
said he will work with staff to get some historical and technical information.  A 
lengthy discussion ensured with questions from Athena Plummer and other Board 
members.  Ms. Plummer said she would like to see what that money is going 
towards (the data on an annual basis), as all in the PSAP Community have to 
provide true-up information annually.  Chairman Stern asked for a motion from 
the Board to approve the FY2014 Annual Report.  Chief Doug Middleton made a 
motion to approve and Mr. Robert Layman 2nd the motion for approval.  The 
motion passed; 14-0-0. 
 
 
 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS 
 
No old business 
 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Dr. Spears-Dean addressed the Board on the following: 
 
• Update on Text to 9-1-1 Subcommittee:  Chief Doug Middleton addressed 

the Board and said it was a very informative meeting held on August 26th.  
The Subcommittee’s focus was on level setting and completing the Charter, 
which they are requesting be approved by the Board.  Other items discussed 



were: 1) review of Interim SMS Text to 9-1-1 solutions; 2) current 
deployments and planned deployments for Text to 9-1-1 in Virginia.  The next 
meeting of the Text to 9-1-1 Subcommittee will be held today (September 11, 
2014) at 1 pm, and the focus will be on costs and activities in other states.  
Chief Middleton said the Subcommittee is requesting approval from the Board 
on the Charter.   Chairman Stern called for a motion to approve the Charter.  
Chief Doug Middleton made the motion to approve the Charter, and Ms. 
Pokey Harris 2nd the motion to approve the Charter.  The Charter was 
approved; 14-0-0.   
 

• Funding Methodology Discussion:  Dr. Spears-Dean addressed the Board 
and said that Athena Plummer is going to talk about the Funding 
Methodology.  Ms. Plummer addressed the Board and informed the Board that 
she and staff came together to discuss the funding methodology.  She said she 
wanted to take a look at the impact on the PSAPs.  Chairman Stern asked for 
questions or comments. Mr. Robert Layman had a question about the 
minimum floor.  Mr. Von Moll asked if Ms. Plummer is looking at the merit 
of the floor itself.  Ms. Plummer said yes.  Chairman Stern commented that it 
is very reasonable for Ms. Plummer to work with staff on the funding 
methodology.   
 

• Review of FY16 WEP Application:  Dr. Spears-Dean addressed the Board 
and said that Mr. Richard Troshak will address the Board on the review of the 
FY 2016 WEP Applications.  Ms. Spears-Dean said that the issue related to 
the FY 2016 WEP application is the result of the PSAP Grant Committee 
members reviewing state conference attendance.  They were attempting to 
include a “check-box” for an evaluation plan for attendance to simplify the 
application.  Mr. Troshak addressed the Board and said he is representing VA 
APCO and shared copies of the “State Professional Organization Conference 
Form”.  Mr. Troshak emphasized how valuable it is for PSAPs to attend the 
conferences.  He said that they have had robust attendance at past VA APCO 
conferences.  VA APCO is asking that the Board set aside the “check-box” for 
an evaluation plan for attendance for FY 2016 and ask staff and the PSAP 
Grant Committee to address this issue in the FY 2017 Guidelines.  Chairman 
Stern called for a motion to approve VA APCO’s request.  Chief Middleton 
made the motion to approve the recommendation; and Ms. Athena Plummer 
2nd the motion for approval.  All approved the motion; 14-0-0. 
 
 
 
 

• Emergency Grant Request:  Dr. Spears-Dean  
 
 

• Essex County - Larry Smith addressed the board and said that their 
mapping system went down on them, and they are addressing the 



Board to consider their “Emergency Grant Request of $52,039.99. 
Mr. Smith said that his Facility’s Director will address the Board to 
give the figure.  Mr. Smith’s Facility Director said that since 2009 
they had to do an upgrade to the Public Radio System, and they are 
requesting the $52,039.99 to purchase this mapping system.  Chief 
Middleton asked if they have gone to their County Supervisor for 
the money.   The Facility Director stated no, as there is no money 
budgeted.   He also said that if they pay for the mapping system, the 
money paid out would almost deplete their fund balance and not 
leave enough money to cover emergencies for the rest of the fiscal 
year.  Chief Middleton said that since there will be money left in 
the account, and that this does not constitute any “emergency”.  
Chief Middleton would like to suggest that Essex County go ahead 
and pay for the new Mapping System, and should they get into an 
emergency situation, the Board could address it later.  A discussion 
ensued from several Board members.  Chief Middleton then asked 
if $25,000 be granted instead of $52,039.99, would this allow the 
locality to not deplete their fund.  Chief Middleton moved that the 
Board approve the emergency grant of $25,000 for the purpose of 
not depleting Essex County’s funds, and thereby allowing them to 
pay for their Mapping System.  Lt. Robert Kemmler 2nd the motion 
for approval of awarding Essex County $10,000 as opposed to the 
$52,039.99.  Chairman Stern called for the vote on the motion; and 
all approved; 14-0-0.  Chairman Stern asked that staff come up with 
a simplified check list for emergency grant requests.  Mr. Marzolf 
suggested that the simplified checklist be brought before the PSAP 
Grant Committee. Also, Chairman Stern asked if Counsel would 
look into “emergency bonds, loans, etc. as a way of funding some 
of the “emergency requests.  Mr. Heslinga said he would look into 
it.  . 
 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT  
Chairman Stern called for public comments at CESC and the remote locations.  
Mr. Marzolf introduced Mr. Anthony Fung (Deputy Secretary of Technology) to 
the Board.  Mr. Fung addressed the Board, and thanked everyone for their service.  
Chairman Stern thanked him for coming and said he welcomed his expertise.  
There were no comments from the remote locations or at CESC. 
 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT OF THE MEETING 
 
Chairman Stern called for a motion to adjourn the meeting of the E-911 Services 
at Board at 12:01 PM; and the motion was approved 14-0-0. 
: 
 



 
 
Respectfully Submitted:  
________________________________________________________ 
     Terry D. Mayo                                                              (Date) 


	E911 Service Board Meeting
	September 11, 2014
	10:00 AM - CESC

